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Contract 617 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 1, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Jana Slovinska; Comments Due:
November 12, 2024.

12. Docket No(s).: MC2025-263 and
K2025-261; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail & USPS Ground
Advantage Contract 429 to the
Competitive Product List and Notice of
Filing Materials Under Seal; Filing
Acceptance Date: November 1, 2024;
Filing Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR
3035.105, and 39 CFR 3041.310; Public
Representative: Christopher Mohr;
Comments Due: November 12, 2024.

13. Docket No(s).: MC2025-264 and
K2025-262; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 619 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 1, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Maxine Bradley; Comments Due:
November 12, 2024.

14. Docket No(s).: MC2025-266 and
K2025-264; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 620 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 1, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Jana Slovinska; Comments Due:
November 12, 2024.

III. Summary Proceeding(s)

None. See Section II for public
proceedings.

This Notice will be published in the
Federal Register.

Erica A. Barker,

Secretary.
[FR Doc. 2024—-25915 Filed 11-7-24; 8:45 am]|

BILLING CODE 7710-FW-P

POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION
[Docket No. C2024-21; Order No. 7884]
Complaint Proceeding

AGENCY: Postal Regulatory Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Commission is
acknowledging a document opening a
proceeding to consider issues related to
the classification of Catherine Commons
as a dormitory or residence hall. This
document takes other administrative
steps.

ADDRESSES: Documents are available
electronically via the Commission’s
Filing Online system at https://
WWW.pIc.gov.
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I. Background
II. Ordering Paragraphs

I. Background

Complainants and their affiliates own
and operate Catherine Commons, a
newly developed four-building complex
located in Ithaca, New York.
Complainants assert that the Postal
Service has unduly or unreasonably
discriminated against Catherine
Commons in violation of 39 U.S.C.
403(c) by misclassifying it as a
dormitory rather than an apartment
community. Classification as a
dormitory allows the Postal Service to
deliver mail in bulk rather than to
apartment-type mailboxes, and places
responsibility on the building owner for
final delivery of mail. Pursuant to 39
U.S.C. 3662(b), the Commission
concludes that Complainants have made
sufficient allegations that there may be
no rational or legitimate basis for
classifying Catherine Commons as a
dormitory or residence hall and that
there are outstanding issues of fact to
resolve whether the Postal Service has
violated 39 U.S.C. 403(c). The Order
grants the Postal Service’s Motion to
Dismiss on all remaining substantive
grounds.?

The Commission appoints a presiding
officer to preside over the conduct of the
proceedings, including scheduling,

discovery, potential hearings, and
briefing in this matter. The Commission
finds good cause to waive the
appointment of an officer of the
Commission designated to represent the
interests of the general public in this
proceeding as required by 39 CFR
3022.30(c) because the violations
alleged in the Complaint pertain solely
to Complainants, who are represented
by counsel, rather than the general
public.

II. Ordering Paragraphs

It is ordered:

1. The Commission finds that the
Complaint of Cook-Coll, LLC and Coll-
Cath Associates, LLC, filed August 28,
2024, raises material issues of fact.

2. The United States Postal Service’s
Motion to Dismiss the Complaint of
Cook-Coll, LLC and Coll-Cath
Associates, LLC, filed September 17,
2024, is denied on the grounds that the
Complaint of Cook-Coll, LLC and Coll-
Cath Associates, LLC, filed August 28,
2024, failed to include the certification
required by 39 CFR 3022.10(a)(9).

3. The United States Postal Service’s
Motion to Dismiss the Complaint of
Cook-Coll, LLC and Coll-Cath
Associates, LLC, filed September 17,
2024, is granted on all remaining
grounds except for the claim related to
the alleged violation of 39 U.S.C. 403(c).

4. Pursuant to 39 CFR 3010.106, the
Commission appoints Laura K.
Koepnick as a presiding officer in this
proceeding.

5. The Secretary shall arrange for
publication of this Order, or abstract
thereof, in the Federal Register.

By the Commission.

Erica A. Barker,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2024-25997 Filed 11-7-24; 8:45 am]
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POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION

Notice Initiating Docket(s) for Recent
Postal Service Competitive Negotiated
Service Agreement Filings

(Issued November 5, 2024)

Docket No.
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express International, Priority Mail International, First-Class Package International
Service & Commercial ePacket Contract 2 (MC2020-157), Negotiated Service AGreements ..........ccccceveeveneeeenenieenenieennens CP2020-173
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express International, Priority Mail International & First-Class Package International
Service Contract 27 (MC2023-265), Negotiated Service AGreements ... CP2023-268

1 See United States Postal Service Motion to
Dismiss, September 17, 2024 (Motion to Dismiss).
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Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express International, Priority Mail International & First-Class Package International

Service Contracts, Priority Mail Express International, Priority Mail International & First-Class Package International Serv-

HCE CONTIACE 49 ...ttt ettt et e e e bt e h e e e it e e be e e b e e be e e ab e e she e et e et b e e bt e e ae e e bt e ean e et e e e n e naeenreenanas MC2025-265
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express International, Priority Mail International & First-Class Package International

Service Contract 49 (MC2025-265), Negotiated Service AGreements ... K2025-263
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 621 ............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii e MC2025-267
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 621 (MC2025-267),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........coiiiiiiiiiii e e e s b e s a e s e e s e e s n e K2025-265
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 622 ... e MC2025-268
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 622 (MC2025—-268),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........c.ooiiiiiiii e e e s h s b e s e s a e s e s e K2025-266
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 623 ... e MC2025-269
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 623 (MC2025—-269),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........c.oiiiiiiiiii e e e e b s a e s e e s a e s n e K2025-267
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 624 ... MC2025-270
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 624 (MC2025-270),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........c.oiiiiiiiiii e e e e b s a e s e e s a e s n e K2025-268
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage

(070011 2=Te: 32 1 L O TSRO PRSP PR URUPRROTO MC2025-271
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 430 (MC2025-271), Negotiated Service

Y 1 (=T=T 0 1= o1 PO K2025-269
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage

(070011 = Te: 32 & T O T T ST P TR STTTU U PR UPRROPO MC2025-272
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 431 (MC2025-272), Negotiated Service

Y 1 (=T=T 0 1= o1 PO K2025-270
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 625 ... MC2025-273
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 625 (MC2025-273),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........ccoiiiiiiiii e e e e b e s a s e s e e s e e K2025-271
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 626 ..............ccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e MC2025-274
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 626 (MC2025-274),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........ccoiiiiiiiii e e e e b e s a s e s e e s e e K2025-272
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 627 ............cccciiiiiiiiiiiiii s MC2025-275
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 627 (MC2025—

275),Negotiated ServiCe AQrEEMENTS ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiii e s e s K2025-273
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 628 ... MC2025-276
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 628 (MC2025-276),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........ccoiiiiiiiii e e e e b e s a s e s e e s e e K2025-274
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contracts, Priority Mail Express,

Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 629 ............cccciiiiiiiiiiii e MC2025-277
Competitive Product Prices, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & USPS Ground Advantage Contract 629 (MC2025-277),

Negotiated Service AGrEEMENTS .........coiiiiiiiii e e e e b s a e s e e s n e s n e K2025-275

1. Introduction

Pursuant to 39 CFR 3041.405, the
Commission gives notice that the Postal
Service filed request(s) for the
Commission to consider matters related
to Competitive negotiated service
agreement(s). The request(s) may
propose the addition of a negotiated
service agreement from the Competitive
product list or the modification of an
existing product currently appearing on
the Competitive product list.

The public portions of the Postal
Service’s request(s) can be accessed via
the Commission’s website (http://
www.prc.gov). Non-public portions of
the Postal Service’s request(s), if any,
can be accessed through compliance

with the requirements of 39 CFR
3011.301.1

Section II identifies the docket
number(s) associated with each Postal
Service request, if any, that will be
reviewed in a public proceeding as
defined by 39 CFR 3010.101(p), the title
of each such request, the request’s
acceptance date, and the authority cited
by the Postal Service for each request.
For each such request, the Commission
appoints an officer of the Commission to
represent the interests of the general
public in the proceeding, pursuant to 39
U.S.C. 505 and 39 CFR 3000.114 (Public

1 See Docket No. RM2018-3, Order Adopting
Final Rules Relating to Non-Public Information,
June 27, 2018, Attachment A at 19-22 (Order No.
4679).

Representative). Section II also
establishes comment deadline(s)
pertaining to each such request.

The Commission invites comments on
whether the Postal Service’s request(s)
identified in Section II, if any, are
consistent with the policies of title 39.
Applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements include 39 U.S.C. 3632, 39
U.S.C. 3633, 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR
part 3035, and 39 CFR part 3041.
Comment deadline(s) for each such
request, if any, appear in Section II.

Section III identifies the docket
number(s) associated with each Postal
Service request, if any, to add a
standardized distinct product to the
Competitive product list or to amend a
standardized distinct product, the title
of each such request, the request’s
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acceptance date, and the authority cited
by the Postal Service for each request.
Standardized distinct products are
negotiated service agreements that are
variations of one or more Competitive
products, and for which financial
models, minimum rates, and
classification criteria have undergone
advance Commission review. See 39
CFR 3041.110(n); 39 CFR 3041.205(a).
Such requests are reviewed in summary
proceedings pursuant to 39 CFR
3041.325(c)(2) and 39 CFR
3041.505(f)(1). Pursuant to 39 CFR
3041.405(c)—(d), the Commission does
not appoint a Public Representative or
request public comment in proceedings
to review such requests.

II. Public Proceeding(s)

1. Docket No(s).: CP2020-173; Filing
Title: Request of the United States Postal
Service Concerning Modification Four
to Priority Mail Express International,
Priority Mail International, First-Class
Package International Service &
Commercial ePacket Contract 2
Negotiated Service Agreement, Which
Includes an Extension of that
Agreement; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
CFR 3035.105, 39 CFR 3041.505, and 39
CFR 3041.515; Public Representative:
Katalin Clendenin; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

2. Docket No(s).: CP2023-268; Filing
Title: Request of the United States Postal
Service Concerning Modification One to
Priority Mail Express International,
Priority Mail International & First-Class
Package International Service Contract
27, Which Includes an Extension of that
Agreement; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
CFR 3035.105, 39 CFR 3041.505, and 39
CFR 3041.515; Public Representative:
Katalin Clendenin; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

3. Docket No(s).: MC2025-265 and
K2025-263; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express
International, Priority Mail International
& First-Class Package International
Service Contract 49 to the Competitive
Product List and Notice of Filing
Materials Under Seal; Filing Acceptance
Date: November 4, 2024; Filing
Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR
3035.105, and 39 CFR 3041.310; Public
Representative: Katalin Clendenin;
Comments Due: November 13, 2024.

4. Docket No(s).: MC2025—-267 and
K2025-265; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 621 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39

U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Kenneth Moeller; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

5. Docket No(s).: MC2025-268 and
K2025-266; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 622 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Kenneth Moeller; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

6. Docket No(s).: MC2025-269 and
K2025-267; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 623 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Elsie Lee-Robbins; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

7. Docket No(s).: MC2025-270 and
K2025-268; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 624 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Samuel Robinson; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

8. Docket No(s).: MC2025-271 and
K2025-269; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail & USPS Ground
Advantage Contract 430 to the
Competitive Product List and Notice of
Filing Materials Under Seal; Filing
Acceptance Date: November 4, 2024;
Filing Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR
3035.105, and 39 CFR 3041.310; Public
Representative: Christopher Mohr;
Comments Due: November 13, 2024.

9. Docket No(s).: MC2025-272 and
K2025-270; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail & USPS Ground
Advantage Contract 431 to the
Competitive Product List and Notice of
Filing Materials Under Seal; Filing
Acceptance Date: November 4, 2024;
Filing Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR
3035.105, and 39 CFR 3041.310; Public
Representative: Christopher Mohr;
Comments Due: November 13, 2024.

10. Docket No(s).: MC2025-273 and
K2025-271; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 625 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:

November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Jennaca Upperman; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

11. Docket No(s).: MC2025-274 and
K2025-272; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 626 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Gregory Stanton; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

12. Docket No(s).: MC2025-275 and
K2025-273; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 627 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Maxine Bradley; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

13. Docket No(s).: MC2025-276 and
K2025-274; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 628 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Maxine Bradley; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

14. Docket No(s).: MC2025-277 and
K2025-275; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage
Contract 629 to the Competitive Product
List and Notice of Filing Materials
Under Seal; Filing Acceptance Date:
November 4, 2024; Filing Authority: 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 39
CFR 3041.310; Public Representative:
Anaswar Jayakumar; Comments Due:
November 13, 2024.

III. Summary Proceeding(s)

None. See Section II for public
proceedings.
This Notice will be published in the
Federal Register.
Erica A. Barker,
Secretary.
Media Inquiries
Gail Adams,
gail.adams@prc.gov

[FR Doc. 2024-26067 Filed 11-7—24; 8:45 am|
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